
 

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE SHELTER 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

December 10, 2025 / 6pm / UPAWS Office Area 

Mission: 
Our mission is to improve the quality of life and 

welfare for domestic animals and to provide a safe 
haven while finding lifelong homes for the animals in 

our care. We embrace the No Kill* philosophy, 
seeking to end the euthanasia of healthy and 

treatable animals. 

Vision: 
A community where there are no homeless, 

neglected or abused animals, and where 
everyone understands and practices the level 

of commitment and responsibility that pet 
guardianship entails. 

 

Agenda 

 

1. Call to Order / Attendance 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Mission Moment 

4. Public Comment 

5. Approval of Minutes 

a. October 24, 2025 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

b. November 2, 2025 E-Vote to Approve Staff Bonus 

c. November 5, 2025 E-Vote for purchase of Surgical Center Equipment 

d. November 19, 2025 Special Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

6. Unfinished Business 

a.  Municipal Contracts update 

b.  Legislative Updates 

i. HB 5208/5209: Cat Declaw Ban - has been reintroduced to the House and 
has been referred to the House Agriculture Committee for consideration. 

ii. HB 4254: Queenie’s Law - (prohibits public institutions from using dogs in 
painful experiments) passed the House Regulatory Reform Committee and 
has now moved to the House Rules Committee. 

iii. HB 4254: Queenie’s Law - (prohibits public institutions from using dogs in 
painful experiments) passed the House Regulatory Reform Committee and 
has now moved to the House Rules Committee. 

iv. HB 4220/4221: Telehealth Bills  -The House Rules Committee passed and will 
now move to the House floor.  

7. New Business 

a. Board Meeting dates for 2026 
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b. Andrews Cooper Pavlik PLC Presentation of Audited Financial Statements for 2024  

c. IRS Form 990  

8. Communications 

9. President’s Report 

10. Treasurer’s Report 

a. Treasurer’s Report 

b. September 2025 Financials 

c. October 2025 Financials 

11. Shelter Operations Reports 

a. Shelter Manager Report 

b. BACC (Behavioral Animal Care Coordinator) Report for both October and November 

c. Shelter Statistics 

12. Committee Reports 

a. Board Development Committee Report (Steffani) 

b. Finance Committee Report (Chris) 

c. Strategic Planning Committee Report (Chris) 

d. Personnel Committee Report (Lynn) 

e. Policy / Bylaw Committee Report (Leslie) 

f. Donor Development Ad Hoc Committee Report (Steffani) 

g. CART (Community Animal Response Team) Report 

13. Public Comment 

14. Board Comment 

15. Adjournment 

Next Board Meeting Date: MM/DD/YYYY, 6pm, Cliffs-Eagle Mine Community Room, UPAWS 



 

 

 
 

Upper Peninsula Animal Shelter 
Monthly Board Meeting 

October 24th 2025 
 
Board Members Present: Lynn Andronis, Andi Goriesky  
Board Members Present Virtually: Dominic Andriacchi, Steffani Baker, Chris Danik 
Staff Present: Ann Brownell, Adda Lamon, Sarah Yeager (virtually) 
Public Present: Reva Laituri, ?? 
 
 

1. Call to Order:  The regular monthly meeting was called to order by President Lynn Andronis at 
6:10 PM. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda: The agenda was presented and approved with no additions or corrections. 
Motion: Chris moved to approve the agenda; Second: Steffanie, all in favor.  Motion carried. 
 

3. Mission Moment:  Lynn shared that the new surgery center is now open and operating 
successfully. So far, 38 shelter cats (that have been in the Foster-to-Adopt status) have been 
spayed or neutered, with more procedures scheduled. The board expressed excitement and 
appreciation for this milestone. 

 
4. Public Comment: None. 

 
5. Approval of Meeting Minutes: 

a. September 24, 2025 Meeting Minutes Draft – Minutes were presented for approval. No 
corrections or additions were noted.  Motion: Steffanie moved to approve the minutes; 
Second: Dominic. All in favor, Motion carried. 

 
6. Unfinished Business: 

a. Update on Michigan Senate bills 293 and 294 - Lynn reported that the Michigan Senate 
bills related to animal welfare are still under review in the House Judiciary Committee. 
There is currently no scheduled vote. 

 
7. New Business: None. 

 
8. Communications:  Sarah confirmed that all board members received her recent email regarding 

a large bequest. All members confirmed receipt.  Lynn and Sarah will send an email to the 
remaining municipal contract partners on Thursday, October 23. 

 
9. Treasurer’s Report: 



 

 

a. Treasurer’s Report:  No written treasurer’s report was available.  Chris provided a verbal 
update, noting that he is finalizing the audit and will email the report to all board 
members soon. 

b. September 2025 Financials:  Not submitted. 
 

10. Shelter Operations Report:  
a. Shelter Manager Report -  Written report submitted. Sarah also reported that a staff 

meeting was held on October 21, which went well. The team discussed new adjusted 
hours and plans to implement additional changes, with updates to follow.  Steffani 
asked if there had been a sign-up sheet at the 50th Anniversary Celebration; Sarah 
confirmed there was not. The event had a strong turnout, and the board expressed 
gratitude for community support. 

b. Behavioral Coordinator Report -  (Julie was absent)  A question was raised about the 
initials used in the report; Addie clarified that initials are used in place of full pet names 
for confidentiality.  It was noted that felines should be included in the report, and Sarah 
confirmed that she discussed this with Julie. 

c. Shelter Stats – September stats submitted.  Lynn reported that she is still working on 
getting accurate counts for Clinic & Services. 

 
11. Committee Reports: 

a. Board Development Committee – Meeting minutes attached.  Steffanie reported that 
the committee is revising documents and applications for outreach to potential board 
members (e.g., via LSCP).  Discussion included whether future board expectations 
should involve shadowing shelter operations to better understand daily functions. This 
will be discussed further at a later meeting. 

b. Donor Development – Meeting minutes attached. The committee discussed gaining 
access to Neon to better update donor data and implement new initiatives when 
meeting with people. Nikki has joined the committee, and the team is revamping donor 
recognition programs. 

c. Finance Committee - No written report. 
d. Strategic Planning - Chris reported that Linda from Grow & Lead has provided a draft 

strategic plan, which is available in the shared drive.  The new mission statement needs 
to be reviewed and adopted by the Policy & Bylaws Committee. 

e. Personnel Committee – Meeting minutes attached.  Discussion centered on wage 
reviews, emphasizing that compensation should be considered an investment in staff. 
The board agreed this topic remains a high priority. 

f. Policy & Bylaws Committee - Leslie continues to serve as liaison, she was not present 
and no report was submitted. 

g. CART (County Animal Response Team) - No report (Cathy absent). 
 

12. Late Addition to the Meeting - Sarah submitted an R & R for a new anesthesia machine, along 
with a verbal explanation. Sarah and Ann are meeting with the executor on Monday regarding 
the large bequest, which may make the R & R unnecessary. The board discussed that this could 
be an excellent naming opportunity for the surgery or care center, and a way to invest in other 
medical equipment. This donation has no restrictions. The board agreed the funds should be 
used to enhance shelter operations. Chris suggested that the board vote on the expenditure 
after Sarah and Ann meet with the donor and report back with a formal Report & 



 

 

Recommendation.  We can then address it as an e-vote so that equipment can be ordered in a 
timely manner. 
 

13. Public Comment - Ann reported that solicitation letters and the calendar are currently at Pride 
Printing.  The UPAWS Holiday Store will begin setup soon, so future board meetings may need 
to be held in the office area or off-site. Adda suggested updating the community room name to 
the Eagle Mine Community Room but including “UPAWS” in the name. 

 
14. Board Comment - The board discussed combining November and December meetings due to 

the holidays. After discussion, it was decided that the next meeting will be held Wednesday, 
December 10, 2025, at the shelter. The following meeting will be in January 2026. 

 
15. Adjournment - Motion: Andi moved to adjourn the meeting; Second: Chris, all in favor and 

motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:07 PM. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Andi Goriesky,  
UPAWS Board Secretary  



E-VOTE FOR STAFF BONUSES 
On 10/29/25 at 2:45 pm, Lynn Andronis, UPAWS Board President, e-mailed to all members 
of the Board of Directors regarding a Report & Recommendation for StaN Bonuses.   Motion 
was made by SteNani Baker and seconded by Andi Goriesky to move to approve the 
recommendation.  The President put the Motion to an e-vote on 10/31/25.  The vote closed 
at 5 pm on 11/2/25.  By a vote of 3 in favor (C. Danik, A. Goriesky, D. Andriacchi), 0 
opposed, 1 abstention (S. Baker), the motion was approved. 
 



Report and Recommendation 
Staff Bonus 

October 28th, 2025 
 

Report: 
 In the last few months, the staff has dealt with a lot. From being short staffed, to an 
overcrowding shelter and dealing with multiple humane cases at the same time, we have been 
through it all. Everyday we thank each other and do little things to show our appreciation, but I 
think the shelter needs to recognize the “old” staff that have stuck through it and the “new” staff 
who joined the team and jumped right in. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 I recommend that the staff receive an appreciation bonus with the bequest from Georgia Curry. 
The amount is based on hours worked, with each staff earning $0.50/hour worked since January 
1st. The table on the next page shows each staff member, their hours worked and the bonus 
amount. The total amount for all staff is $7,507.24 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sarah Yeager, LVT 
Shelter Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



E-VOTE FOR PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT FOR THE SURGICAL CENTER 
 
On 10/29/25 at 2:45 pm, Lynn Andronis, UPAWS Board President, e-mailed to all members 
of the Board of Directors regarding a Report & Recommendation for the purchase of 
additional equipment for the Surgical Center.   Motion was made by Dominic Andriacchi 
and seconded by Andi Goriesky to approve the recommendation.  The President put the 
Motion to an e-vote on 1/1/25.  The vote closed at 12 pm on 11/4/25.  By a vote of 4 in favor 
(D. Andriacchi, S. Baker, C. Danik, A. Goriesky), 0 opposed, 0 abstention, the motion was 
approved. 
 

















Report and Recommendation 
Totals for Georgia Curry bequest 

October 28, 2025 
 

Anesthesia machine: $3,706.57 
IDEXX blood machines: $20,990 
Surgery Center supplies: $1,636.83 
 
Total: $26,333.40 



 

 

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE SHELTER 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

November 19, 2025 / 6 pm / Virtually, via Google Meet 
 

On 11/14/25, notice for a Special Meeting was presented to the board members via email to 
discuss two time-sensitive issues that need to be resolved prior to our next meeting on 12/10/25 
(i.e., this year's Snow Plowing Contract and Staff Holiday Bonuses).  The meeting was called by 
Lynn for Wednesday, 11/19/25, at 6 pm to discuss the recommendations from Sarah. 
 
PRESENT:  Lynn Andronis, Dominic Andriacchi, Steffani Baker, Chris Danik, Andi Goriesky, 
Sarah Yeager (Shelter Manager) 

 
Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order at 6:04 pm with a quorum present.   

 
Approval of Agenda:  Steffani made a motion to accept the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Andi.  All in favor and motion carried. 
 
Report and Recommendation for Snow Removal Contract 2025-2026:  Contract proposals were 
received from Rick Garrow and A Cut Above Tree and Lawn Care. Rick Garrow has been 
contracted with UPAWS for snow removal for the last few years, has always done a good job 
and has not increased his prices. A Cut Above proposal was similar as far as services go but 
board members were asked to "pick the price". Some discussions followed regarding the two 
proposals.  Per the Report and Recommendation from Sarah, she is recommending that the 
board approves the bid from Rick Garrow for the 2025-26 snow season.  Motion was made by 
Andi, seconded by Chris, to approve the recommendation.  All in favor and motion carried. 
 
Report and Recommendation for Staff Holiday Bonuses 2025:  There was some discussion 
regarding whether to have a holiday party for the staff or not. Sarah said the staff had mixed 
thoughts on a party. Sarah explained her rationale on bonuses for full time, part time and 
employees who have just started recently.  Per the Report and Recommendation, she is 
recommending that the board approves a request to spend $6,350 for the holiday staff bonus to 
be paid to employees on the 12/11/25 paycheck.  Motion was made by Chris, seconded by 
Steffani to accept the recommendation.  All in favor and motion carried. 

 
Adjournment:  Andi made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:33 pm, seconded by Steffani.  All 
in favor and motion carried. 
 
NOTE:  Our next regular board meeting will be December 10, 2025, at 6:00 pm at the shelter in 
the office area, due to the Community Room being utilized for the Holiday Store.  
 
Respectfully submitted,    Counter-Signed 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Andi Goriesky, Secretary    Lynn Andronis, President 
 
 
 

 



 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter 
 

November 17, 2025 
 
 
 



 

   

Board of Directors 
 

Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter 
 

November 17, 2025 
 
 

 
 

♦ Introduction  
 
 

♦ Board of Directors Letter  
 

− Services Provided and in Process 
 
− Results of our Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
− Required Communications with the Board of Directors 

 
 
♦ Financial Highlights  
 
 
♦ Other Questions or Comments 



 
ANDREWS HOOPER PAVLIK PLC 

 

201 WEST BLUFF STREET | MARQUETTE, MI 49855 

 

P: 906.228.3600 | TF: 800.228.0554 | WWW.AHP.CPA | F: 906.228.3113 
 

Andrews Hooper Pavlik PLC is a member of Allinial Global, an association of legally independent firms. 

 

 

  

 
 
 
November 17, 2025 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter 
Gwinn, Michigan 
 
 
We are pleased to submit this report, which summarizes the results of our audit, and other matters 
which we believe would be of interest to you. 
 

Services Provided and in Process 
 
In accordance with our engagement letter, AHP provided the following services: 
 
Audit Services: 

• Annual Financial Statement Audit – Completed   
 
Nonaudit Services: 

• Assistance with financial statement preparation – Completed 
• Annual Federal Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax – In process 

 
We have reviewed the services provided and confirm that we are independent of the Upper 
Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter. 
 
Results of our Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
The audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and included such tests of the accounting records and other auditing 
procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements.  
 
The following summarizes various matters of interest during our audit: 
 
Significant Risks 
 
As noted in our scope letter dated July 23, 2025, we identified certain areas as having significant 
risks related to the potential of a material misstatement. We audited each of those significant risks 
with audit procedures designed to mitigate those risks. Based on our procedures performed, we 
noted no matters that need to be communicated to you.
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Cybersecurity and Information Technology Controls 
 
Cyberattacks are on the rise across the globe, and the cost of these attacks is ever increasing.  
Because of these attacks, entities stand to lose their reputation, the ability to operate efficiently, 
and proprietary information or assets. Entities may also be subject to financial and legal liabilities.  
Managing this issue is especially challenging because even an entity with a highly mature 
cybersecurity risk management program still has a residual risk that a material cybersecurity 
breach could occur and not be detected in a timely manner. We believe management should 
continue to monitor and evaluate this risk, which is a critical best practice. Additionally, periodic 
assessments of the system in order to verify that the control environment is functioning as designed 
are key parts of measuring associated business risk. We encourage those charged with governance 
to work with management on this very important topic. If we can be of assistance in the process, 
we would be happy to do so. 
 
Adopted Audit and Accounting Standards 
 
None. 
 
Future Audit and Accounting Standards 
 
None.   
 

Required Communications with the Board of Directors 
 
This section discusses our responsibilities under AICPA Professional Standards AU-C Section 
260, The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance.  The following excerpts 
from that standard describe the specific matters required to be communicated to you and our 
responses thereto: 
 
Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
 
The auditor’s standard report emphasizes that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS is 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (U.S. GAAP).  Our report dated November 17, 2025 follows this format.  
Because of the concept of reasonable assurance, and because we did not perform a detailed 
examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, 
including fraud and defalcations, may exist and not be detected by us. 
 
Our responsibility, as described by our professional standards, is to express an opinion about 
whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, 
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. GAAP.  Our audit does not relieve you or 
management of your responsibilities. 
 
As part of the audit, we considered the internal control of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare 
Shelter.  Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and 
not to provide any assurance concerning internal control. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 
 
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our scope letter dated July 23, 2025.  No matters came to our attention during our audit that 
resulted in a change to the scope of our procedures.    The completion of the audit was delayed due 
to delays in receiving various audit documentation.    
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter are described 
in Note 1 to the financial statements.  We noted no transactions entered into by the Upper Peninsula 
Animal Welfare Shelter during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements were the allocation methodology for functional expenses and 
estimates used in the determination of in-kind revenue.  For these estimates, we evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 
 

• Investments (Note 5) 

• Endowment Fund (Note 6) 

• Net Asset Designations and Restrictions (Note 9) 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We 
noted certain misstatements that management has corrected, a list of which is attached to this letter.  
None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.   



 

4 

Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.   
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management’s representation letter dated November 17, 2025.  A copy is attached for your 
reference. 
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of 
the type of opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all relevant facts.  
To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.   
 
Major Issues Discussed with Management Prior to Retention 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as auditors.  However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 
 
Communication of Fees for Nonaudit Services 
 
As previously described in this letter, we performed certain nonaudit services at the request of 
management and documented in an engagement letter.  Fees for these services have not exceeded 
those noted in our engagement letter. 
 
Management Letter 
 
We considered the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter’s internal control during the course 
of the audit, and we remained alert for areas where procedures and controls could be improved.  
We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that 
we would consider to be material weaknesses. 
 

*     *     * 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors of the Upper 
Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
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We will be pleased to respond to any comments or questions you may have concerning this letter, 
our significant deficiency and management letter, or any other aspects of our services to the Upper 
Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter. 
 
It has been a pleasure to serve the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter.  We would like to 
express our appreciation for the cooperation and courtesy extended to us by management and 
employees of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter and look forward to continuing our 
association in the future. 
 
 Sincerely, 

  



Client: UPAWS
Engagement: 2024 Financial Statement Audit
Current Period: 12/31/2024
Workpaper: A-08 Adjusting Journal Entries

Account Description Debit Credit Net Income Effect
AJE-01
To adjust deprecation expense 
1670 Accumulated Depreciation                     0.00                            674.00 
5160 OPERATING EXPENSE:Depreciation                 674.00                                0.00 
Total                 674.00                            674.00                          (674.00)

AJE-02
To adjust investment income to actual 
4226 Change in Value-Dixon Trust                     0.00                        9,199.00 
4220 OTHER Revenue:Miscellaneous Revenue           36,059.00                                0.00 
4222 Investment Interest Revenue                     0.00                      20,921.00 
4300 Unrealized Gain/Loss                     0.00                            794.00 
6561 OTHER EXPENSE:Investment Expense                     0.00                        9,225.00 
6540 OTHER EXPENSE:Miscellaneous Expense             4,080.00                                0.00 
Total           40,139.00                      40,139.00                                0.00 

AJE-03
To capitalize expensed assets
1645 Office & Kennel Equipment             2,892.00                                0.00 
5102 OPERATING EXPENSE:Animal Supplies/Equipment                     0.00                        2,892.00 
1650 New Shelter-Furniture & Equip             1,829.00                                0.00 
5105 OPERATING EXPENSE:Repairs/Maintenance                     0.00                        1,829.00 
Total             4,721.00                        4,721.00                        4,721.00 

AJE-04
To adjust for donated cat litter and donated 
services

4125 DIRECT PUBLIC SUPPORT:Donated Svs/Material In Kind                     0.00                        1,180.00 
5102 OPERATING EXPENSE:Animal Supplies/Equipment             1,180.00                                0.00 
4125 DIRECT PUBLIC SUPPORT:Donated Svs/Material In Kind                     0.00                        2,100.00 
6505 OTHER EXPENSE:Professional Fees             2,100.00                                0.00 
Total             3,280.00                        3,280.00                                0.00 

     GRAND TOTAL           48,814.00                      48,814.00                        4,047.00 
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Report of Independent Auditors 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter 
Gwinn, Michigan 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare 
Shelter (a not-for-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter as of December 31, 2024 
and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are 
required to be independent of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Upper 
Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after 
the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute 
assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
       

 
 
 
Marquette, Michigan 
November 17, 2025 



Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Statements of Financial Position

2024 2023
Assets  
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 554,825$           619,603$           
Certificates of deposit 322,378             328,973             
Accounts receivable 27,617               24,327               
Promises to give, current portion 1,400                 2,400                 
Inventory 8,536                 6,171                 

Total current assets  914,756             981,474             

Other assets:
Promises to give, non-current, net 100                    1,350                 
Investments 410,930             372,451             
Beneficial interest in assets held by
  Marquette Community Foundation 121,054             114,272             
Beneficial interest in Dixon Trust 633,569             612,673             

Total other assets 1,165,653          1,100,746          

Land, building, and equipment
Land 20,587               20,587               
Buildings and improvements 3,653,333          3,653,333          
Vehicles 32,649               32,649               
Office and kennel furniture and equipment 110,974             106,252             

Total land, building, and equipment 3,817,543          3,812,821          
Less accumulated depreciation 801,941             661,356             
Land, building, and equipment, net 3,015,602          3,151,465          

Total assets  5,096,011$        5,233,685$        

Liabilities and net assets  
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 5,095$               12,438$             
Credit card payable 2,750                 2,927                 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 15,893               14,460               
Accrued benefits 21,097               18,552               
Sales tax payable 679                    623                    

Total current liabilities  45,514               49,000               

Net assets without donor restrictions:
Undesignated 3,813,574          4,027,296          
Board designated – endowment 99,931               90,574               

Total net assets without donor restrictions 3,913,505          4,117,870          

Net assets with donor restrictions 1,136,992          1,066,815          
Total net assets  5,050,497          5,184,685          

Total liabilities and net assets  5,096,011$        5,233,685$        

December 31

See accompanying notes.  3



Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Statements of Activities

  
Without Donor 

Restrictions
With Donor 
Restrictions Total

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total

Revenues, gains, and other support
Gift shop sales:

Gross sales 42,779$            -$                      42,779$            38,675$            -$                      38,675$            
Less, cost of sales (26,241)             -                        (26,241)             (25,132)             -                        (25,132)             

Gross profit 16,538              -                        16,538              13,543              -                        13,543              

Shelter revenue 131,937            -                        131,937            95,831              -                          95,831              
Direct public support 282,872            24,552              307,424            311,653            20,384              332,037            
Bequests 64,828              -                        64,828              50,000              -                        50,000              
Revenues from fundraising events and special projects 88,062              -                        88,062              92,799              -                        92,799              
Governmental contracted services 27,070              -                        27,070              69,230              -                        69,230              
Grants 653                   -                        653                   885                   -                        885                   
In-kind contributions 35,752              -                        35,752              23,194              -                        23,194              
Interest and dividends 46,251              -                        46,251              25,017              -                        25,017              
Distributions of earnings from Marquette
  Community Foundation – Reider Fund 22,249              -                        22,249              22,039              -                        22,039              
Change in value of beneficial interest in assets held by
  Marquette Community Foundation -                        11,777              11,777              -                        11,562              11,562              
Change in beneficial interest in Dixon Trust -                        52,444              52,444              -                        52,911              52,911              
Net investment return 9,357                29,122              38,479              9,424                29,683              39,107              
Other 1,335                -                        1,335                8,723                -                        8,723                
Net assets released from restrictions 47,718              (47,718)             -                        55,195              (55,195)             -                        
Total revenues, gains, and other support 774,622            70,177              844,799            777,533            59,345              836,878            

Expenses
Program services 817,454            -                        817,454            823,281            -                        823,281            
Support services:

Management and general 108,016            -                        108,016            58,451              -                        58,451              
Fundraising 53,517              -                        53,517              47,020              -                        47,020              

Total support services 161,533            -                        161,533            105,471            -                        105,471            
Total expenses 978,987            -                        978,987            928,752            -                        928,752            

Change in net assets (204,365)           70,177              (134,188)           (151,219)           59,345              (91,874)             
Net assets – beginning of year 4,117,870         1,066,815         5,184,685         4,269,089         1,007,470         5,276,559         
Net assets – end of year  3,913,505$       1,136,992$       5,050,497$       4,117,870$       1,066,815$       5,184,685$       

Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023

See accompanying notes.   4



Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Statements of Functional Expenses

Program Management Total Program Management Total
Services and General Fundraising Expenses Services and General Fundraising Expenses

Personnel costs 414,102$      35,404$        4,422$           453,928$      438,624$      4,706$          3,528$          446,858$      
Veterinary and medical supplies 146,036        -                    -                     146,036        104,273        -                    -                    104,273        
Food for animals 11,421          -                    -                     11,421          12,840          -                    -                    12,840          
Animal equipment 12,148          -                    -                     12,148          7,818            -                    -                    7,818            
Utilities 34,304          1,906            1,906             38,116          35,913          1,995            1,995            39,903          
Insurance 31,958          1,776            1,776             35,510          31,679          1,761            1,761            35,201          
Custodial supplies/services 9,471            499               -                     9,970            13,517          711               -                    14,228          
Office supplies 4,749            1,356            678                6,783            4,393            1,255            629               6,277            
Repairs and maintenance 9,354            -                    -                     9,354            15,053          -                    -                    15,053          
Travel/vehicle expenses -                    4,105            -                     4,105            -                    2,849            -                    2,849            
Publication expenses 4,302            4,302            2,152             10,756          8,031            8,031            4,016            20,078          
Community awareness 8,265            -                    -                     8,265            8,124            -                    -                    8,124            
Conferences -                    4,575            -                     4,575            -                    1,717            -                    1,717            
Professional fees, including donated services -                    34,158          -                     34,158          -                    26,399          -                    26,399          
Fundraising events and projects -                    -                    33,611           33,611          -                    -                    26,064          26,064          
Dog license expense 110               -                    -                     110               250               -                    -                    250               
Depreciation 126,527        7,029            7,029             140,585        126,393        7,022            7,022            140,437        
Gift shop cost of sales 26,241          -                    -                     26,241          25,132          -                    -                    25,132          
Volunteer program 822               -                    -                     822               955               -                    -                    955               
Bank fees 3,885            1,943            1,943             7,771            2,585            1,292            1,292            5,169            
Miscellaneous -                    10,963          -                     10,963          12,833          713               713               14,259          
Total expenses by function 843,695        108,016        53,517           1,005,228     848,413        58,451          47,020          953,884        

Less expenses included with revenues
  on the statements of activities (26,241)         -                    -                     (26,241)         (25,132)         -                    -                    (25,132)         
Total expenses  817,454$      108,016$      53,517$         978,987$      823,281$      58,451$        47,020$        928,752$      

Support Services Support Services

Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023

See accompanying notes.  5



Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Statements of Cash Flows

2024 2023
Operating activities
Change in net assets (134,188)$       (91,874)$           
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
  from operating activities:

Depreciation 140,585           140,437            
Realized and unrealized gains on endowment fund investments (21,317)           (31,880)             
Change in beneficial interest in assets held by Marquette
  Community Foundation, net of distributions (6,782)             (6,595)               
Change in beneficial interest in Dixon Trust, net of distributions (20,896)           (18,864)             
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (3,290)             (20,585)             
Inventory (2,365)             (6,171)               
Accounts payable (7,343)             (3,485)               
Other current liabilities 3,857               8,798                

Net cash from operating activities (51,739)           (30,219)             

Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (4,722)             (15,672)             
Purchase of investment securities (17,162)           (27,500)             
Sale of investment securities -                      19,195              
Maturities (purchases) of certificates of deposit 6,595               (328,973)           
Net cash from investing activities (15,289)           (352,950)           

Financing activities
Proceeds from contributions restricted for long-term purposes 2,250               2,762                
Net cash from financing activities 2,250               2,762                
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (64,778)           (380,407)           
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 619,603           1,000,010         
Cash and cash equivalents – end of year 554,825$         619,603$          

Year Ended December 31

See accompanying notes.  6
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
The Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter (Shelter) is a not-for-profit organization whose 
purpose is to ensure the safety and protection of all animals. Services provided by the Shelter 
include care and shelter of stray animals, adoption service, neglect/cruelty referrals, lost and found 
service, humane education, and community awareness campaigns.  The Shelter’s main source of 
revenue is public contributions. 
 
Basis of Accounting  
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For financial statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents consist of all cash on hand, checking 
accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts, and all highly liquid financial instruments 
with original maturities of three months or less, which are not held for long-term purposes.  
 
Receivables 
 
Revenues earned but not received as of December 31 are recorded as accounts receivable on the 
statements of financial position.  Accounts receivable are stated at amortized cost net of the 
allowance for credit losses.  The allowance for credit losses is an estimate of amounts that may be 
uncollectible.  The Shelter determines the need for an allowance based on an evaluation of the 
accounts receivable, historical collection experience, and expectations about current and future 
economic conditions.  In the opinion of management, all accounts receivable are considered fully 
collectible; therefore, no allowance for credit losses have been established. 
 
Promises to Give 
 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give.  Promises 
to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value. 
Promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value 
of their estimated future cash flows. 
 
The Shelter uses the allowance method to estimate uncollectible promises to give based on 
management’s analysis of the pledges receivable outstanding. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventory consists of merchandise for resale and operating supplies.  The inventory is valued at 
the lower of cost or net realizable value on a moving average basis. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments consist of cash equivalents and mutual funds. Cash equivalents are carried at cost. 
Investments in mutual funds are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are 
included in the statements of activities. 
 
Beneficial Interest in Dixon Trust 
 
The Shelter is both the beneficiary of annual income distributions as well as the beneficiary of the 
remainder distribution of assets held in trust.  As a practical expedient, the beneficial interest in 
trust is carried at fair value based on quoted market prices of the underlying investments.  Changes 
in the fair value of the beneficial interest in trust are reflected in the net assets with donor 
restrictions class of net assets, due to the time restrictions of the distributions.  Distributions from 
the trust are reflected as reductions in the beneficial interest in trust and reclassified from net assets 
with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions. 
 
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by the Marquette Community Foundation 
 
In 2004, the Shelter contributed assets to the Marquette Community Foundation (Foundation) to 
establish the Marquette County Humane Society Agency Fund (Fund).  The Shelter named itself 
as the beneficiary of the expendable earnings, which are to be distributed at least annually.  The 
Shelter granted variance power to the Foundation, whereby if the Fund is terminated or if the 
Foundation dissolves, ceases to exist, or ceases to hold or administer the funds, the governing 
board of the Foundation shall distribute the net assets as it chooses, giving primary consideration 
to the Shelter or to an organization or purpose recommended by the Shelter.  In accordance with 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-
20, Not-for-Profit Entities – Financially Interrelated Entities, these amounts are reported on the 
Shelter’s statements of financial position as a beneficial interest in assets held by the Marquette 
Community Foundation.  Earning distributions are recognized as an increase in net assets without 
donor restrictions in the statements of activities. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Land, Building, and Equipment  
 
Fixed assets are obtained through purchase and donation.  Purchased assets are recorded at cost 
and donated assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation.  Fixed assets are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Buildings 
and improvements are being depreciated over 30 years, new equipment over seven years, and used 
equipment over five years.  The Shelter capitalizes all fixed assets valued greater than $1,000. 
 
Net Assets 
 
The Shelter reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two 
classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to, or are no longer 
subject to, donor-imposed stipulations.  The Board of Directors may designate, from net assets 
without donor restrictions, funds for specified use. 
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.  Some 
donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the 
passage of time or other events specified by the donor.  Other donor-imposed restrictions are 
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity.  
Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated 
time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been 
fulfilled, or both. 

 
Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related 
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions.  Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets 
without donor restrictions.  Gains and losses are reported as increases or decreases in net assets 
without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by 
law.  Expirations of donor restrictions on the net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been 
fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between the 
applicable classes of net assets. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue from contributions is recognized when cash, securities, other assets, or an unconditional 
promise to give is received.  Revenue from grants is recognized when qualifying expenses are 
incurred.  Revenue from fee for service and merchandise sales are recognized at the point in time 
the services are performed or goods are exchanged.  These revenues are recognized when earned 
and in an amount that reflects the consideration the Shelter expects to be entitled to receive in 
exchange for those services.  These revenues do not include material amounts of variable 
consideration or financing components.   
 
The following economic factors affect the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of the Shelter’s 
revenue and cash flows as indicated: 
 

• Economic trends: Services to all customers correlate with economic cycles and are cyclical 
in nature based on personal discretion.  Overall revenue from attendance at the Shelter’s 
programs and merchandise sales can be dependent on individuals’ disposable income. 

 
• Geographical location of customers: Services are to customers located primarily in the area 

that includes Marquette and the surrounding areas; therefore, revenue is correlated to the 
local economy. 

 
• Not-for-profit industry: Contributions and funding to not-for-profit organizations fluctuate 

based on availability of resources and support in the community. 
 
Revenue from contracts with customers includes gift shop sales, pet adoption and redeemed animal 
fees, and governmental contracted services.  The amount of revenue from contracts with customers 
totaled $201,786 for the year ended December 31, 2024 and $203,736 for the year ended 
December 31, 2023.   
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
In-Kind Contributions 
 
Donated goods and services are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation based on 
current rates for similar items at the time of donation.  The Shelter does not sell donated items.  In 
addition, volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, 
and fundraising activities; however the financial statements do not reflect the value of these 
contributed services because they do not meet the recognition criteria prescribed by U.S. GAAP. 
 
In-kind contributions consisted of the following for the years ended December 31: 
 
  

2024 
 

2023 
Utilization in 

Programs/Activities 
      
IT services $ 1,200 $ 2,400 Management and General 
Legal services  900  1,350 Management and General 
Pet food and other supplies  15,643  19,444 Program 
Discounted veterinary services  18,009  - Program 
Total $ 35,752 $ 23,194  
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statements of activities.  The statements of functional expenses presents the 
natural classification detail of expenses by function.  Expenses that can be identified with a specific 
program or supporting service are charged directly to the program or supporting service benefited. 
Expenses related to more than one function are allocated based on various bases, as determined by 
management. 
 
The expenses that have been allocated include personnel costs, utilities, insurance, custodial 
supplies/services, office supplies, publication expenses, depreciation, bank fees, and 
miscellaneous which are primarily allocated based on estimates of time and effort.   
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Preparation of the Shelter’s financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use 
of management’s estimates. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Shelter is a not-for-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  However, income from certain activities not directly related to the 
Shelter’s tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. 
 
Generally, tax years from 2021 through the current tax year remain open to examination.  
Management does not believe that the results of any examination of these open years would have 
a material adverse effect on the Shelter. 
 
Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Shelter may be subject to social and natural catastrophic events that are beyond the control of 
the Shelter, such as health epidemics, natural disasters, and other catastrophes, which could 
materially and adversely affect the Shelter’s results of operations and financial condition. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and disclosure in the 
financial statements through November 17, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 
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2. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of December 31, comprise the following: 
 

 2024 2023 
     
Cash and cash equivalents $ 554,825 $ 619,603 
Certificates of deposit  322,378  328,973 
Accounts receivable  27,617  24,327 
Pledges receivable, current portion  1,400  2,400 
  906,220  975,303 
Less financial assets with donor restrictions  (71,270)  (56,643) 
Plus anticipated distribution from Dixon Trust  25,000  25,000 
Financial assets available to meet cash needs     
    for expenditures within one year $ 859,950 $ 943,660 

 
3. Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Shelter had cash deposits in excess of federally insured limits totaling $195,742 as of 
December 31, 2024 and $258,219 as of December 31, 2023.  The deposits in excess of federally 
insured limits are based on the Shelter’s bank balances as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
 
4. Promises to Give 
 
During 2015, the Shelter commenced a capital campaign.  The campaign goal was $3.7 million to 
be used to finance the construction of a new animal shelter.  Promises to give are as follows: 
 

 2024 2023 
     
Receivable in less than one year $ 1,400 $ 2,400 
Receivable in two to five years  100  1,350 
Total unconditional promises to give  1,500  3,750 
     
Less current portion  (1,400)  (2,400) 
Long-term promises to give, net $ 100 $ 1,350 
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5. Investments 
 
Market value and unrealized appreciation on investments are as follows: 
 

 
Cost Fair Value 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

December 31, 2024       
Cash equivalents, at cost $ 2,701 $ 2,701 $ - 
Mutual funds  270,646  318,016  47,370 
Exchange traded funds  76,592  90,213  13,621 
Total investments $ 349,939 $ 410,930 $ 60,991 

       
December 31, 2023       
Cash equivalents, at cost $ 2,849 $ 2,849 $ - 
Mutual funds  253,337  284,414  31,077 
Exchange traded funds  76,592  85,188  8,596 
Total investments $ 332,778 $ 372,451 $ 39,673 

 
Investment return for the years ended December 31 is comprised of the following: 
 

 2024 2023 
     
Interest and dividends $ 20,921 $ 10,675 
Realized gain  -  1,312 
Unrealized gain   21,517  30,568 
Investment management fees  (3,959)  (3,448) 
Total investment return $ 38,479 $ 39,107 

 
6. Endowment Fund 
 
The Shelter’s endowment fund includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by the 
Board of Directors to function as endowments.  Net assets associated with endowment funds, 
including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified 
and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) is an update of the 
Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act (UMIFA), which dates back to 1972.  In 
September of 2009, UPMIFA was signed into law in the State of Michigan.  UPMIFA requires the 
historical dollar amount of a donor-restricted endowment fund to be preserved.  In the absence of 
donor restrictions, the net appreciation on a donor-restricted endowment fund is spendable under 
UPMIFA.
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6. Endowment Fund (continued) 
 
In accordance with UPMIFA, the Shelter considers the following factors in making a 
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 

• The duration and preservation of the endowment fund 

• The purposes of the Shelter and the endowment fund 

• General economic factors 

• The possible effect of inflation or deflation 

• The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments 

• Other resources of the Shelter 

• The investment policy of the Shelter 
 
The Shelter’s donors have not placed restrictions on the use of the investment income or net 
appreciation resulting from the donor-restricted endowment funds. 
 
The Shelter uses the services of a third-party investment manager. 
 
The Board of Directors, upon recommendation from the Finance Committee, determines a 
percentage of earnings to be distributed each year. 
 
The Shelter’s endowment fund net assets consist of the following: 
 
 Board 

Designated 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

December 31, 2024       
Donor-restricted endowment: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Original gift amount $ - $ 185,175 $ 185,175 
Accumulated investment gains  -  125,824  125,824 

Board-designated endowment  99,931  -  99,931 
Total investments $ 99,931 $ 310,999 $ 410,930 
       
December 31, 2023       
Donor-restricted endowment:       

Original gift amount $ - $ 185,175 $ 185,175 
Accumulated investment gains  -  96,702  96,702 

Board-designated endowment  90,574  -  90,574 
Total investments $ 90,574 $ 281,877 $ 372,451 
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6. Endowment Fund (continued) 
 
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of the Shelter’s endowment in total and by 
net asset class, consists of the following: 
 

 Without Donor 
Restrictions 

With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

    
Endowment net assets at January 1, 2023 $ 80,072 $ 252,194 $ 332,266 
Investment return, net  9,424  29,683  39,107 
Contributions  1,078  -  1,078 
Appropriation of endowment assets       
  for expenditure  -  -  - 
       
Endowment net assets at December 31, 2023 $ 90,574 $ 281,877 $ 372,451 
Investment return, net  9,357  29,122  38,479 
Contributions  -  -  - 
Appropriation of endowment assets       
  for expenditure  -  -  - 
       
Endowment net assets at December 31, 2024 $ 99,931 $ 310,999 $ 410,930 
 
7. Beneficial Interest in Dixon Trust 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Shelter was notified that it was named as the 
beneficiary of the Jack & Patricia Dixon Irrevocable Trust FBO UPAWS (Trust).  The Trust is 
managed by a financial institution. 
 
The Shelter has unconditional rights to income distributions from the Trust. Income is to be 
distributed at least annually for a 10-year term.  At the end of the 10-year term, the Shelter will be 
the unconditional beneficiary of the remaining Trust assets plus any undistributed income. 
 
Neither the annual income distributions nor the final distribution are restricted as to use.  During 
2016, the Shelter recorded bequest revenue of $556,764, representing the estimated fair value of 
the Trust assets at the date of the grantor’s death.  The Shelter periodically adjusts the amount 
recorded as the beneficial interest to the fair value of the Trust assets as reported by the financial 
institution.  Changes in the fair value of the beneficial interest in the Trust assets are recorded in 
the statements of activities in the assets with donor restrictions net asset class, due to the time 
restriction.  Distribution from the Trust totaled $31,783 for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 
$34,048 for the year ended December 31, 2023.  The fair value of the Trust assets totaled $633,569 
as of December 31, 2024 and $612,673 as of December 31, 2023. 
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8. Fair Value Measurements 
 
Accounting standards establish a framework for measuring fair value.  That framework provides 
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair 
value.  The hierarchy consists of three broad levels: 
 

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that are accessible at 
the measurement date. 
 
Level 2: Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets in markets that are not active; or inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3: Inputs are unobservable, that is, the inputs are supported by little or no market activity. 

 
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at 
fair value: 
 

Investments: The fair value of short-term investments, mutual funds, and exchange traded 
funds is the market value based on quoted market prices, when available, or market prices 
provided by recognized broker dealers. 
 
Beneficial interest in Dixon Trust: The fair value of the beneficial interest in Dixon Trust is 
based on quoted market prices of the underlying investments. 

 
Beneficial interest in assets held by the Marquette Community Foundation: The fair value of 
the beneficial interest in assets held by the Marquette Community Foundation is based on 
unobservable inputs. 
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
The following table presents information about the Shelter’s investments and beneficial interests 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2024: 
 

 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Investments:         

Short-term investments $ 2,701 $ 2,701 $ - $ - 
Mutual funds  318,016  318,016  -  - 
Exchange traded funds  90,213  90,213  -  - 

Total investments  410,930  410,930  -  - 
         
Beneficial interests:         

Assets held by the Marquette         
  Community Foundation  121,054  -  -  121,054 
Dixon Trust  633,569  -  633,569  - 

Total beneficial interests  754,623  -  633,569  121,054 
         
Total $ 1,165,553 $ 410,930 $ 633,569 $ 121,054 

 
The following table presents information about the Shelter’s investments and beneficial interests 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2023: 
 
 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Investments:         

Short-term investments $ 2,849 $ 2,849 $ - $ - 
Mutual funds  284,414  284,414  -  - 
Exchange traded funds  85,188  85,188  -  - 

Total investments  372,451  372,451  -  - 
         
Beneficial interests:         

Assets held by the Marquette         
  Community Foundation  114,272  -  -  114,272 
Dixon Trust  612,673  -  612,673  - 

Total beneficial interests  726,945  -  612,673  114,272 
         
Total $ 1,099,396 $ 372,451 $ 612,673 $ 114,272 
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of assets measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 

 Assets Held  
by the  

Marquette 
Community 
Foundation 

   
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 107,677 
   
Contributions  - 
Investment return, net  11,562 
Distributions  (4,967) 
   
Balance at December 31, 2023  114,272 
   
Contributions  - 
Investment return, net  11,777 
Distributions  (4,995) 
   
Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 121,054 
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9. Net Asset Designations and Restrictions 
 
Net asset designations and restrictions are as follows: 
 

 December 31 
 2024 2023 
Net assets without donor restrictions:     

Undesignated $ 3,813,574 $ 4,027,296 
Board designated – endowment  99,931  90,574 

Total net assets without donor restrictions  3,913,505  4,117,870 
     
Net assets with donor restrictions subject to the     
  passage of time or expenditure for specific purpose:     

Pledges receivable  1,500  3,750 
Horse protection and education  69,870  54,243 
Beneficial interest in Dixon Trust  633,569  612,673 

Total subject to the passage of time or expenditure     
  for a specific purpose  704,939  670,666 
     
Perpetual in nature, subject to spending policies     
  and appropriation:     

Beneficial interest in assets held by     
  Marquette Community Foundation  121,054  114,272 
Endowment fund  310,999  281,877 

Total subject to spending policies and appropriation  432,053  396,149 
Total net assets with donor restrictions  1,136,992  1,066,815 
Total net assets $ 5,050,497 $ 5,184,685 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions include amounts designated by donors for an endowment 
fund.  Income earned on investments may be used for general purposes. 
 
10. Commitments 
 
The Shelter has contracts with the City of Marquette, Marquette County, Negaunee Township, Ely 
Township, and Chocolay Township, which require it to provide various types of care for stray 
animals.  All contracts are open-ended, with either party able to cancel the contract; some contracts 
require 20 days notice, while other contracts are silent. The Shelter issues monthly invoices for 
services rendered. 
 
 



Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a–11d, 11f–24e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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Form 990 (2024) Page 2
Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the2

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3

4

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: . . . . . . . . . . ) (Expenses $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . including grants of $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ) (Revenue $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . )

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule A  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

8

9

10

11

12a

13

14a

b

15

16

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule D, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a

custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,

VII, VIII, IX, or X, as applicable.

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,

fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or

for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other

assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

17

18

19

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?

Yes No

19

18

17

16

15

14b

14a
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8
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or in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part VI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more

Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If

Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

a

b

c

d

e

f

11a

11b

11c

11d

11e

11f

b

12a

12b

foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20a

20b

domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

21
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Form 990 (2024)DAA

NoYes

Form 990 (2024) Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

28

a

b

c

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule N, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III,

or IV, and Part V, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable

related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

36

35a

34

33

32

31

30

29

28a

28b

28c

22

23

24a

24b

24c

24d

25a

25b

26

27

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit

Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

to defease any tax-exempt bonds?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than

organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated

Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

27

26

b

25a

d

c

b

24a

23

22

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

L, Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and

3819? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1b

1a

1creportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

b

1a

NoYes

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
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Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)Part V
Page 5Form 990 (2024)

Yes No

DAA

Form 990 (2024)

2a

b

3a

b

4a

b

5a

b

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax

Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

6a

b

7

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

8

9

a

b

10

a

b

11

a

b

12a

b

If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the

If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or

gifts were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods

If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was

required to file Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? . . . . . . . . . . . .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources

against amounts due or received from them.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2b

3a

3b

4a

5a

5b

5c

6a

6b

7a

7b

7c

7e

7f

7g

7h

8

9a

9b

12a

7d

10a

10b

11a

11b

12b

2a

.

and services provided to the payor?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

13aa

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

b

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the amount of reserves on hand  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c 13c

13b

14a

14bb

14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or

excess parachute payment(s) during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16

If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

17

17

Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified or other person, engage in any activities

that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 4953?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.
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Section C. Disclosure

1b

1a

2

Form 990 (2024)DAA

NoYes

Form 990 (2024) Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

b

2

3

4

5

6

7a

b

8

a

b

9

10a

11a

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with

any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have members or stockholders?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint

one or more members of the governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

The governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at

the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3

4

5

6

7a

7b

8a

8b

9

10a

11a

Yes No

12a

b

c

13

14

15

a

b

16a

b

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?  . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”

describe on Schedule O how this was done  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other officers or key employees of the organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement

with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its

participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the

organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

12a

12b

12c

13

14

15a

15b

16a

16b

17

18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)

(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,

and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records.

Own website Another's website Upon request

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b

10b

b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or

if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar

committee, explain on Schedule O.

Other (explain on Schedule O)

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

X

5

5

X

X
X
X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X
X

X
X

X

MI

X
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from the

related organizations

compensation

Section A.

Independent Contractors
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, andPart VII

Page 7Form 990 (2024)

DAA

Form 990 (2024)

Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the1a

List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
 $100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B)

(C)

(D) (E) (F)

Name and title

Position

from related
compensation

Reportable

organizations (W-2/

1099-MISC/

Reportable
of other

Estimated amount

organization and

compensationfrom the

organization (W-2/
1099-MISC/

In
d

ivid
u

a
l tru

ste
e

o
r d

ire
cto

r

HPSOR\HH
+LJKHVW�FRPSHQVDWHG

In
stitu

tio
n

a
l tru

ste
e

O
ffice

r

K
e

y e
m

p
lo

ye
e

F
o

rm
e

r

•
organization's tax year.

List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
•
•

•

•

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organizations

below

per week

hours for

Average
hours

related

(list any

dotted line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

officer and a director/trustee)

box, unless person is both an
(do not check more than one

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1099-NEC) 1099-NEC)

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

LESLIE HURST

PRESIDENT

16.00
0.00 X X 0 0 0

BRIAN HUMMEL

PART YEAR VICE PRESI

2.50
0.00 X X 0 0 0

LYNN ANDRONIS

PART YEAR VICE PRESI

25.00
0.00 X X 0 0 0

CHRIS DANIK

TREASURER

12.00
0.00 X X 0 0 0

CAROLE TOUCHINSKI

PART YEAR SECRETARY

16.00
0.00 X X 0 0 0

ANDI GORIESKY

DIRECTOR

1.50
0.00 X 0 0 0

SARAH EVERS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

40.00
0.00 X 43,065 0 399

Public Inspection Copy



Form 990 (2024)DAA

Form 990 (2024) Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

d Total (add lines 1b and 1c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization 

3

4

5

Yes No

5

4

3
Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization 

�$�
1DPH�DQG�EXVLQHVV�DGGUHVV 'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV

�%� �&�
&RPSHQVDWLRQ

In
d

ivid
u

a
l tru

ste
e

o
r d

ire
cto

r

In
stitu

tio
n

a
l tru

ste
e

O
ffice

r

K
e

y e
m

p
lo

ye
e

HPSOR\HH

F
o

rm
e

r

+LJKHVW�FRPSHQVDWHG

(C)

Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c

1b Subtotal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(do not check more than one
box, unless person is both an

officer and a director/trustee)

Position

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

dotted line)

(list any

related

hours
Average

hours for

per week

below

organizations

1099-MISC/
organization (W-2/

from the compensation

organization and

Estimated amount
of other

Reportable

1099-MISC/

organizations (W-2/

Reportable
compensation

from related

Name and title

(F)(E)(D)(B)(A)

compensation

related organizations

from the

1099-NEC) 1099-NEC)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

43,065 399

43,065 399

0

X

X

X

0
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Form 990 (2024)

DAA

Form 990 (2024) Page 9
Part VIII Statement of Revenue

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded

function revenue business revenue from tax under
sections 512-514

1a

b

c

d

e
f

g

h

Federated campaigns  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Membership dues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Fundraising events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Related organizations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

*RYHUQPHQW�JUDQWV��FRQWULEXWLRQV�  . . . . . . . . . . . .
$OO�RWKHU�FRQWULEXWLRQV��JLIWV��JUDQWV�
DQG�VLPLODU�DPRXQWV�QRW�LQFOXGHG�DERYH  . . . . . . . .

1RQFDVK�FRQWULEXWLRQV�LQFOXGHG�LQ

Total. Add lines 1a–1f  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1a

1b

1c

1d

1e

1f

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2a

g

f

e

d

c

b

All other program service revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

Total. Add lines 2a–2f  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

C
o

n
tr
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u

ti
o

n
s
, 
G

if
ts

, 
G

ra
n

ts
,

a
n

d
 O

th
e
r 

S
im

il
a
r 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

3U
RJ

UD
P
�6
HU
YLF

H

3

4

5

6a

b

c

d

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

other similar amounts)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Royalties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross rents

/HVV��UHQWDO�H[SHQVHV
5HQWDO�LQF��RU��ORVV�
Net rental income or (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Business Code

(i) Real (ii) Personal

(ii) Other(i) Securities

d

c

b

7a *URVV�DPRXQW�IURP
VDOHV�RI�DVVHWV
RWKHU�WKDQ�LQYHQWRU\
/HVV��FRVW�RU�RWKHU
EDVLV�DQG�VDOHV�H[SV�
Gain or (loss)

Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

8a

b

c

*URVV�LQFRPH�IURP�IXQGUDLVLQJ�HYHQWV
�QRW�LQFOXGLQJ
RI�FRQWULEXWLRQV�UHSRUWHG�RQ�OLQH
�F���6HH�3DUW�,9��OLQH���  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less: direct expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross income from gaming

activities. See Part IV, line 19  . . . . . . . .

Less: direct expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross sales of inventory, less

returns and allowances . . . . . . . . . .

Less: cost of goods sold  . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11a

b

c

d

e

Total revenue. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10a

9a

b

b

c

c

12

All other revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add lines 11a–11d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

%XVLQHVV�&RGH

M
is

c
e
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n

e
o
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s
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e
r 

R
e
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e
n

u
e

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

5H
YH
QX

H
R

e
v
e
n

u
e

1g

6a

6b

6c

7a

7b

7c

8a

8b

9a

9b

10a

10b

OLQHV��D��I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

3,500

388,548

15,643

392,048

SHELTER REVENUE 900099 131,937 131,937

CONTRACTED SERVICES 900099 27,070 27,070

159,007

89,421 89,421

3,500

84,562

23,323

61,239 61,239

42,779

26,241

16,538 16,538

MISCELLANEOUS 900099 1,335 1,335

1,335

719,588 175,545 0 151,995
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Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b,

8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

a

b

c

d

e

25
26

*UDQWV�DQG�RWKHU�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�GRPHVWLF�RUJDQL]DWLRQV
DQG�GRPHVWLF�JRYHUQPHQWV��6HH�3DUW�,9��OLQH���  . . . . . . . . . .

Grants and other assistance to domestic

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

*UDQWV�DQG�RWKHU�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�IRUHLJQ
RUJDQL]DWLRQV��IRUHLJQ�JRYHUQPHQWV��DQG
IRUHLJQ�LQGLYLGXDOV��6HH�3DUW�,9��OLQHV����DQG���  . . .

Benefits paid to or for members  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Compensation of current officers, directors,

trustees, and key employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

&RPSHQVDWLRQ�QRW�LQFOXGHG�DERYH�WR�GLVTXDOLILHG
SHUVRQV��DV�GHILQHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ������I������DQG
SHUVRQV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�VHFWLRQ������F�����%� . . . . . . . .

Other salaries and wages  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3HQVLRQ�SODQ�DFFUXDOV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQV��LQFOXGH
VHFWLRQ�����N��DQG�����E��HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�
Other employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Fees for services (nonemployees):

Management  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Legal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounting  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Lobbying  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3URIHVVLRQDO�IXQGUDLVLQJ�VHUYLFHV��6HH�3DUW�,9��OLQH���
Investment management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2WKHU���,I�OLQH���J�DPRXQW�H[FHHGV�����RI�OLQH�����FROXPQ

Advertising and promotion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Office expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Information technology  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Royalties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Travel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses

for any federal, state, or local public officials

Conferences, conventions, and meetings  . . . . .

Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payments to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization  . . . . .

Insurance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2WKHU�H[SHQVHV��,WHPL]H�H[SHQVHV�QRW�FRYHUHG
DERYH���/LVW�PLVFHOODQHRXV�H[SHQVHV�RQ�OLQH���H��,I
OLQH���H�DPRXQW�H[FHHGV�����RI�OLQH�����FROXPQ
�$���DPRXQW��OLVW�OLQH���H�H[SHQVHV�RQ�6FKHGXOH�2��

All other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

7RWDO�IXQFWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV��$GG�OLQHV���WKURXJK���H  . . . . .

IXQGUDLVLQJ�VROLFLWDWLRQ��&KHFN�KHUH� LI

RUJDQL]DWLRQ�UHSRUWHG�LQ�FROXPQ��%��MRLQW�FRVWV
IURP�D�FRPELQHG�HGXFDWLRQDO�FDPSDLJQ�DQG

IROORZLQJ�623�������$6&��������� . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total expenses Program service Management and

general expensesexpenses
Fundraising
expenses

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

-RLQW�FRVWV��&RPSOHWH�WKLV�OLQH�RQO\�LI�WKH

�$���DPRXQW��OLVW�OLQH���J�H[SHQVHV�RQ�6FKHGXOH�2�� . . . . . . . .

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

44,357 40,464 3,460 433

371,040 338,487 28,939 3,614

2,386 2,177 186 23

32,425 29,580 2,529 316

550 550
28,894 28,894

3,959 3,959

2,614 2,614
8,265 8,265
25,310 12,936 7,601 4,773

57,440 53,129 2,405 1,906
4,105 4,105

4,575 4,575

140,585 126,527 7,029 7,029
39,230 35,352 2,066 1,812

VETERINARY AND SUPPLIES 128,027 128,027
ANIMAL FOOD AND EQUIP 23,569 23,569
OTHER EXPENSES 11,895 932 10,963
OTHER FUNDRAISING 10,288 10,288

939,514 799,445 109,875 30,194

Public Inspection Copy
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Part X Balance Sheet

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10a

b

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10c

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

33

32

31

30

Cash—non-interest-bearing  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Savings and temporary cash investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Pledges and grants receivable, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounts receivable, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined

under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Notes and loans receivable, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Inventories for sale or use  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

Less: accumulated depreciation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—publicly traded securities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Intangible assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Deferred revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax-exempt bond liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here 

and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.

Net assets without donor restrictions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets with donor restrictions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

and complete lines 29 through 33.

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total net assets or fund balances  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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10a

10b

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

of Schedule D . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

948,576 877,203
3,750 1,500
24,327 27,617

6,171 8,536

3,817,543
801,941 3,151,465 3,015,602

372,451 410,930

726,945 754,623
5,233,685 5,096,011

49,000 45,514

49,000 45,514
X

4,117,870 3,913,505
1,066,815 1,136,992

5,184,685 5,050,497
5,233,685 5,096,011
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OtherAccrualCash

3b

3a

2c

2b

2a

NoYes

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990:

b

3a

c

b

2a

1

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Page 12Form 990 (2024)

DAA

Form 990 (2024)

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on

Schedule O.

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on

Schedule O.

required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Reconciliation of Net AssetsPart XI
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2 2

3

4

9

10

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line

32, column (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

4

5

6

5

6

7

88

7

9

10

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prior period adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or

reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

Separate  basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Both consolidated and separate basisConsolidated basisSeparate  basis

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

X
719,588
939,514

-219,926
5,184,685

85,738

5,050,497

X

X

X

X

X

X
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Employer identification number

DAA

Name of the organization

Internal Revenue Service

Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1545-0047

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

 Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

&RPSOHWH�LI�WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�LV�D�VHFWLRQ�����F�����RUJDQL]DWLRQ�RU�D�VHFWLRQ������D�����QRQH[HPSW�FKDULWDEOH�WUXVW�
�)RUP�����

Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support

2024

(i) Name of supported

Open to Public

Inspection

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,

city, and state:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)8

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)

11

12

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).  Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a

b

c

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
d

e

f Enter the number of supported organizations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).g

organization

(ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization

(described on lines 1–10

GRFXPHQW"
OLVWHG�LQ�\RXU�JRYHUQLQJ
�LY��,V�WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ

Yes No

(v) Amount of monetary

support (see

Total
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

 Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

above (see instructions))

(E)

(D)

(C)

(B)

(A)

Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III 
functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the 

Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

instructions) instructions)

other support (see

(vi) Amount of

9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Cat. No. 11285F

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE
SHELTER INC 38-2228501

X
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(Explain in Part VI.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

governmental unit or publicly

Section A. Public Support

Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

loss from the sale of capital assets
Other income. Do not include gain or

is regularly carried on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

activities, whether or not the business
Net income from unrelated business

rents, royalties, and income from 
payments received on securities loans,
Gross income from interest, dividends,

line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
supported organization) included on

each person (other than a
The portion of total contributions by

Total. Add lines 1 through 3  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

The value of services or facilities

to or expended on its behalf  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization's benefit and either paid
Tax revenues levied for the

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts from line 4  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3XEOLF�VXSSRUW��6XEWUDFW�OLQH���IURP�OLQH��  . . .

include any “unusual grants.”) . . . . . . . . . . . .

membership fees received. (Do not
Gifts, grants, contributions, and

Page 2Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

13

12

11

9

8

6

4

3

2

1

(e) 2024(d) 2023(c) 2022(b) 2021(a) 2020

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)Part II

&DOHQGDU�\HDU��RU�ILVFDO�\HDU�EHJLQQLQJ�LQ�� (f) Total

furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

5

Section B. Total Support

7

similar sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10

organization, check this box and stop here  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

12

14 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part II, line 14  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .15

16a 33 1/3% support test — 2024. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this

box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b 33 1/3% support test — 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check 

this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2024. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is17a

10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in

Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line

in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported 

15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

14

15

%

%

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

&DOHQGDU�\HDU��RU�ILVFDO�\HDU�EHJLQQLQJ�LQ�� (f) Total

Part III. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

shown on line 11, column (f)  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

431,710 1,656,254 715,844 397,092 392,048 3,592,948

431,710 1,656,254 715,844 397,092 392,048 3,592,948

992,583

2,600,365

431,710 1,656,254 715,844 397,092 392,048 3,592,948

51,643 63,734 67,765 57,731 89,421 330,294

4,221 -5,884 904 8,723 1,335 9,299

3,932,541

1,159,795

66.12

66.02

X
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Section B. Total Support

XQUHODWHG�WUDGH�RU�EXVLQHVV�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ����

Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.

1

2

3

6

8

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 3

*LIWV��JUDQWV��FRQWULEXWLRQV��DQG�PHPEHUVKLS�IHHV
UHFHLYHG���'R�QRW�LQFOXGH�DQ\�³XQXVXDO�JUDQWV�´�  . . . . . .

Public support. (Subtract line 7c from

*URVV�UHFHLSWV�IURP�DGPLVVLRQV��PHUFKDQGLVH
VROG�RU�VHUYLFHV�SHUIRUPHG��RU�IDFLOLWLHV
IXUQLVKHG�LQ�DQ\�DFWLYLW\�WKDW�LV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH

*URVV�UHFHLSWV�IURP�DFWLYLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�DQ

Total. Add lines 1 through 5  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section A. Public Support

RUJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�WD[�H[HPSW�SXUSRVH . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax revenues levied for the4

organization's benefit and either paid

to or expended on its behalf  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization without charge  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

furnished by a governmental unit to the
5 The value of services or facilities

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 37a
received from disqualified persons  . . . . . . .

$PRXQWV�LQFOXGHG�RQ�OLQHV���DQG��b
UHFHLYHG�IURP�RWKHU�WKDQ�GLVTXDOLILHG
SHUVRQV�WKDW�H[FHHG�WKH�JUHDWHU�RI�������
RU����RI�WKH�DPRXQW�RQ�OLQH����IRU�WKH�\HDU  . . .

c Add lines 7a and 7b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts from line 6  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .9

UR\DOWLHV��DQG�LQFRPH�IURP�VLPLODU�VRXUFHV  . . . .

SD\PHQWV�UHFHLYHG�RQ�VHFXULWLHV�ORDQV��UHQWV�
10a *URVV�LQFRPH�IURP�LQWHUHVW��GLYLGHQGV�

Unrelated business taxable income (lessb
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c Add lines 10a and 10b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1HW�LQFRPH�IURP�XQUHODWHG�EXVLQHVV11
DFWLYLWLHV�QRW�LQFOXGHG�RQ�OLQH���E��ZKHWKHU
RU�QRW�WKH�EXVLQHVV�LV�UHJXODUO\�FDUULHG�RQ . . . . .

(Explain in Part VI.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

loss from the sale of capital assets
12 Other income. Do not include gain or

Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,13

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part III, line 15 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

15 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

18

Investment income percentage for 2024 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .17

Investment income percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part III, line 17  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

33 1/3% support tests — 2024. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line19a

b 33 1/3% support tests — 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

%

%

16

15

17

18

%

%

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

(f) Total(a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024

line 6.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

&DOHQGDU�\HDU��RU�ILVFDO�\HDU�EHJLQQLQJ�LQ��

&DOHQGDU�\HDU��RU�ILVFDO�\HDU�EHJLQQLQJ�LQ��

and 12.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

(e) 2024(d) 2023(c) 2022(b) 2021(a) 2020 (f) Total

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501
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Part IV Supporting Organizations

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 4

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing 

documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

1

2

3a

b

c

4a

b

c

5a

b

c

6

7

8

9a

b

c

10a

b

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer

lines 3b and 3c below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and 

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 

purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If

“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign

supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion

despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination

under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 

purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”

answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN

numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;

(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited 

by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or 

benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor

(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 

7? If “Yes,” complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 

disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations

described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 

the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 

4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated 

supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes No

1

2

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

5b

5c

6

7

8

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501
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Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 5

NoYes

2

1

supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the

effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported

directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)

more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations

11

c

b

a

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and

11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?

11a

11b

11c

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part 

VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 

supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors

or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control

1

or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed 

the supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the

organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax

1

year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 

organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported2

how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

organization(s), or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI 

supported organizations played in this regard.

income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s

3

a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

3

2

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

a

b

a

c
b
a

b

Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s)  to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify 
 those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to each of its supported organizations, and how the organization determined

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s 
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes No

1

2

1

NoYes

Yes No

1

2

3

NoYes

2a

2b

3b

A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,

3atrustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI.
Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

provide detail in Part VI.

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501
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Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 6

1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 

instructions. All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1

Section A – Adjusted Net Income

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection 

of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of

property held for production of income (see instructions)

Other expenses (see instructions)

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B – Minimum Asset Amount

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

a

b

c

d

e

Average monthly value of securities

Average monthly cash balances

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

(explain in detail in Part VI):

8

7

6

5

4

3

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Section C – Distributable Amount

7

6

5

4

3

2

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

(see instructions).

Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization 

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

(A) Prior Year
(B) Current Year

(optional)

(optional)

(B) Current Year
(A) Prior Year

1a

1b

1c

1d

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

3

2

1

6

5

4

Current Year
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Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)Part V

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

DAA

Section D – Distributions Current Year

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part VI)

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E – Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions

(i) (ii)

Underdistributions

Pre-2024

(iii)

Distributable

Amount for 2024

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

i

j

a

b

c

a

b

c

d

e

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2024
(reasonable cause required–explain in Part VI). See

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2024

From 2020  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Carryover from 2019 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2024 from

Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2024, if

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result

greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2024. Subtract lines 3h

and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in

Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2025. Add lines 3j

and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2023 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

From 2019  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Excess from 2020 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

From 2021  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Excess from 2021 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

instructions.

Excess from 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

From 2022  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

From 2023  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Excess from 2024 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

10
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III, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; PartPart VI
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B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V,
Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
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 Attach to Form 990. 

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Conservation Easements

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the

Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts

(Form 990)
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Employer identification number

OMB No. 1545-0047

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

 Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

a

b

c

d

Total number of conservation easements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line 2a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of conservation easements included on line 2c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

Assets included in Form 990, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Held at the End of the Tax Year

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public

service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,

provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i)

(ii)

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1

2

3

4

5

6

Total number at end of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

Yes

Yes

No

No

Part II

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

2

1

easement on the last day of the tax year.

Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)

Protection of natural habitat

Preservation of open space

Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of a historically important land area

Open to Public
Inspection

the organization during the tax year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by 

4

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing 6

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing 

8

(i) and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

NoYes

Yes No

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar AssetsPart III

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works1a

b

2

following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items.

a

b

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

DAA
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

conferring impermissible private benefit?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2a

2b

2c

2don a historic structure listed in the National Register  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

 Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

(Rev. December 2024)

conversation easements during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

conservation easements during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE
SHELTER INC 38-2228501

Public Inspection Copy



(a) Current year

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form

Amount

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III
Page 2

Public exhibition

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its3

a

collection items (check all that apply).

Scholarly research

Preservation for future generations

b

c

e Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

d Loan or exchange program

XIII.

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar5

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . NoYes

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements

Yes Noincluded on Form 990, Part X?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table.

Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c

d Additions during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Distributions during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .e

f Ending balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2a

If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

NoYes

Endowment FundsPart V

Contributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

Beginning of year balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1a

c Net investment earnings, gains,

Grants or scholarships  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .d

e Other expenditures for facilities and

Administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .f

g End of year balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

c Term endowment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Permanent endowment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

2

a Board designated or quasi-endowment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .%

%

%

3a

organization by:

(i)

(ii)

Unrelated organizations?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Related organizations?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Yes No

3a(i)

3a(ii)

3b

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment

1a

b

c

d

e

Land  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Buildings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Leasehold improvements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10c, column (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(d) Book value(c) Accumulated(b) Cost or other basis(a) Cost or other basis

(investment) (other)

Description of property

1c

1d

1e

1f

and losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

depreciation

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

990, Part X, line 21.

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

372,451

38,479

410,930

332,266

1,078

39,107

372,451

303,783

80,458

-51,975

332,266

275,898

30,744

2,859

303,783

247,533

30,734

2,369

275,898

24.32
75.68

X
X

20,587 20,587
3,653,333 689,650 2,963,683

143,623 112,291 31,332

3,015,602

Public Inspection Copy



Cost or end-of-year market value

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

Page 3
Part VII Investments – Other Securities

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

(a) Description of security or category

(including name of security)

Financial derivatives  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Closely held equity interests  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . .

(a) Description of investment

Investments – Program RelatedPart VIII

(c) Method of valuation:(b) Book value

Cost or end-of-year market value

(b) Book value

Other Assets

(a) Description

Part IX

DAA

Part X

(a) Description of liability

Other Liabilities

(b) Book value

Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Federal income taxes

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1.

2.

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(1)

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(9)

(8)

(7)

(6)

(5)

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(9)

(8)

(7)

(6)

(5)

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(3)

(2)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
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BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUST 633,569
BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN COMMUNITY FOU 121,054

754,623

X
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Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Part XI
Page 4

Part XII

a

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2

b

c

d

e

b

c

a

3

4

5

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Recoveries of prior year grants  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Add lines 2a through 2d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Subtract line 2e from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Add lines 4a and 4b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1

2a

2b

2c

2d

2e

3

4a

4b

4c

5

1

Add lines 4a and 4b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Subtract line 2e from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

Add lines 2a through 2d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

5

4

3

a

c

b

e

Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

b

2

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

a

5

4c

4b

d

4a

3

2e

2d

2c

2b

2a

Part XIII
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.
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Supplemental Information

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

844,799

85,738
20,109

23,323
129,170
715,629

3,959

3,959
719,588

978,987

20,109

23,323
43,432

935,555

3,959

3,959
939,514

PART V, LINE 4 - INTENDED USES FOR ENDOWMENT FUNDS
THE HISTORICAL DOLLAR AMOUNT OF DONOR-RESTRICTED ENDOWMENT FUNDS ARE
PRESERVED. THE DONORS HAVE NOT PLACED RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF THE
INVESTMENT INCOME OR NET APPRECIATION IN THE FUNDS. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
UPON RECOMMENDATION FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE, DETERMINES A PERCENTAGE OF
EARNINGS TO BE DISTRIBUTED EACH YEAR.

PART X - FIN 48 FOOTNOTE
THE SHELTER IS A NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION EXEMPT FROM INCOME TAXES UNDER
SECTION 501(C)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. HOWEVER, INCOME FROM
CERTAIN ACTIVITIES NOT DIRECTLY RELATED TO THE SHELTER'S TAX-EXEMPT
PURPOSE IS SUBJECT TO TAXATION AS UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME. GENERALLY, TAX
YEARS FROM 2021 THROUGH THE CURRENT TAX YEAR REMAIN OPEN TO EXAMINATION.
MANAGEMENT DOES NOT BELIEVE THAT THE RESULTS OF ANY EXAMINATION OF THESE
OPEN YEARS WOULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON THE SHELTER.

PART XI, LINE 2D - REVENUE AMOUNTS INCLUDED IN FINANCIALS - OTHER
FUNDRAISING EVENTS DIRECT EXPENSES                         $      23,323

PART XII, LINE 2D - EXPENSE AMOUNTS INCLUDED IN FINANCIALS - OTHER
FUNDRAISING EVENTS DIRECT EXPENSES                         $      23,323

Public Inspection Copy
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Part XIII Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

DAA
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Internal Revenue Service
Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1545-0047

Employer identification number

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

(Form 990)
SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities

Name of the organization

organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Open to Public

Inspection

Part I Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

Mail solicitations

Internet and email solicitations

Phone solicitations

In-person solicitations

Special fundraising events

Solicitation of government grants

Solicitation of nongovernment grants

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.
If “Yes,” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to beb

(i) Name and address of individual

or entity (fundraiser) (ii) Activity

NoYes

FXVWRG\�RU

FRQWULEXWLRQV"
from activity

UDLVHU�KDYH
(iv) Gross receipts

fundraiser listed in

(or retained by)

(v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to

(or retained by)

organization

Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

registration or licensing.
List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from3

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.

.

...

..
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
DAA

FRQWURO�RI

�LLL��'LG�IXQG�

col. (i)

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19; or if the

Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

1

2

3

6

5

4

8

9

10

7

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

(Rev. December 2024)
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Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 2

Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported morePart II

gross receipts greater than $5,000.
(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events

(d) Total events

(add col. (a) through

(event type) (event type) (total number)

R
e
ve

n
u
e

D
ir
e
ct

 E
xp

e
n
se

s

Gross receipts  . . . . . . . . .1

2

3

4

5

Less: Contributions  . . . .

*URVV�LQFRPH��OLQH���
PLQXV�OLQH��� . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Rent/facility costs  . . . . . .

Noncash prizes  . . . . . . . .

Cash prizes  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other direct expenses

Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

6

7

8

9

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
Part III

D
ir
e
ct

 E
xp

e
n
se

s
R

e
ve

n
u
e

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Rent/facility costs  . . . . . .

Other direct expenses

Volunteer labor  . . . . . . . . .

Noncash prizes  . . . . . . . .

Cash prizes  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross revenue  . . . . . . . . .

(a) Bingo
(b) Pull tabs/instant

(c) Other gaming
(d) Total gaming (add

col. (a) through col. (c))bingo/progressive bingo

Yes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

No

% %

No

Yes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . %

No

Yes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

9

a

b

10a

b

Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “No,” explain:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” explain:

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

DAA Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

col. (c))

10

11

Food and beverages  . . .

Entertainment  . . . . . . . . . .

Yes No

NoYes

than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with

UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE 38-2228501

TEE UP FOR TAIL PET PHOTO CALEN 2

28,963 21,327 20,963 71,253

3,500 3,500

25,463 21,327 20,963 67,753

7,489 7,489

3,134 3,134

400 400

1,381 2,361 6,473 10,215

21,238
46,515

Public Inspection Copy



NoYes

Page 3Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

13

a

b

14

15a

b

c

16

17

a

b

Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:

The organization’s facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
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UPPER PENINSULA ANIMAL WELFARE
SHELTER INC 38-2228501

FORM 990 - ORGANIZATION'S MISSION
TO IMPROVE THE QUAILTY OF LIFE AND WELFARE FOR DOMESTIC ANIMALS AND TO
PROVIDE A SAFE HAVEN WHILE FINDING LIFELONG HOMES FOR THE ANIMALS IN OUR
CARE. TO EMBRACE THE NO KILL PHILOSOPHY SEEKING TO END THE EUTHANASIA OF
HEALTH AND TREATABLE ANIMALS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 8B - DOCUMENTATION BY COMMITTEE EXPLANATION
NO COMMITTEE HAS AUTHORITY TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE GOVERNING BODY.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION'S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990
THE TREASURER REVIEWS THE FORM 990 AND PROVIDES AN ELECTRONIC COPY TO ALL
BOARD MEMBERS BEFORE FILING. THE RETURN IS THEN SIGNED BY THE TREASURER.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C - ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY
THE WRITTEN CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY IS IN THE BOARD MANUAL THAT EACH
MEMBER RECEIVES.  AT THE ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL BOARD MEETING, ALL MEMBERS
ARE REMINDED ABOUT THE POLICY, AND ANY REQUIRED DISCUSSION TAKES PLACE.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS DISCLOSURE EXPLANATION
THE ORGANIZATION MAKES THESE DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9 - OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS EXPLANATION
FUNDRAISING EVENTS DIRECT EXPENSES                         $      23,323
FUNDRAISING EVENTS DIRECT EXPENSES                         $     -23,323

Public Inspection Copy



UPAWS Treasurer's Report 
December 2025 

 
 
Activities Since Last Report: 

● The 990 and Audit are complete with our 990 being filed on time. Thank you to the staff 
at AHP for all of their work getting that done for us. The AHP staff were great to work 
with and very easy to coordinate with on requests.  

● Held a meeting with the Trust Committee and Wells Fargo on 12/4/2025. Made several 
minor changes to the portfolio to reduce some equity holdings and move some of the 
cash from the money market back into other securities. Maintaining a 60/40 equity to 
fixed income ratio. About 9% return YTD.  
 

 
September / October 2025 Financial Reports: 
The September and October 2025 financial reports are presented to the Board of Directors for 
acceptance after being reviewed and approved by the Finance Committee.  
 

● Shelter revenue showing a favorable variance due to higher than projected government 
contract revenue. 

● A couple operating expense accounts are showing an unfavorable variance, but there 
are no major concerns to note. The entire category only has a slight variance. 

● Days Cash on Hand up significantly for October due to bequest deposit.  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Chris Danik 
Treasurer 































Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Days Cash On Hand as of September 2025

Cash Less
Restricted Funds*

Annual
Expense Daily Expense

Days Cash on
Hand

2025
2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Notes
Feburary 2023
September 2023
January 2024

$615,561.05 $904,905.02 $2,479.19 248 (Year to Date)
$500,454.26 $872,726.54 $2,391.03 209
$612,669.21 $887,146.99 $2,430.54 252
$969,199.36 $776,458.72 $2,127.28 456
$882,513.53 $774,749.62 $2,122.60 416
$645,045.70 $753,663.47 $2,064.83 312
$415,591.49 $741,157.74 $2,030.57 205
$311,797.49 $521,136.55 $1,427.77 218
$215,192.09 $536,174.67 $1,468.97 146
$201,661.55 $602,450.00 $1,650.55 122
$152,858.00 $576,669.00 $1,579.92 97
$191,970.00 $520,354.25 $1,425.63 135
$146,529.00 $431,923.23 $1,183.35 124
$147,882.00 $451,620.63 $1,237.32 120

$200,000 moved to four Certificates of Deposit (CD) per board R&R
$100,000 moved to new CDs

The UPAWS Budget now includes depreciation. It's removed for the
purpose of this report.

































Upper Peninsula Animal Welfare Shelter

Days Cash On Hand as of October 2025

Cash Less
Restricted Funds*

Annual
Expense Daily Expense

Days Cash on
Hand

2025
2024
2023
2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Notes
Feburary 2023
September 2023
January 2024

$978,773.72 $904,905.02 $2,479.19 395 (Year to Date)
$500,454.26 $872,726.54 $2,391.03 209
$612,669.21 $887,146.99 $2,430.54 252
$969,199.36 $776,458.72 $2,127.28 456
$882,513.53 $774,749.62 $2,122.60 416
$645,045.70 $753,663.47 $2,064.83 312
$415,591.49 $741,157.74 $2,030.57 205
$311,797.49 $521,136.55 $1,427.77 218
$215,192.09 $536,174.67 $1,468.97 146
$201,661.55 $602,450.00 $1,650.55 122
$152,858.00 $576,669.00 $1,579.92 97
$191,970.00 $520,354.25 $1,425.63 135
$146,529.00 $431,923.23 $1,183.35 124
$147,882.00 $451,620.63 $1,237.32 120

$200,000 moved to four Certificates of Deposit (CD) per board R&R
$100,000 moved to new CDs

The UPAWS Budget now includes depreciation. It's removed for the
purpose of this report.



November Shelter Update 
 

● For the month of October, Subaru sponsored adoption fees of animals over 1 year of 
age. Over 20 animals found forever homes thanks to Fox Marquette Subaru’s generosity 

● The holiday store is officially open! Once again Ann did a fantastic job with filling the 
community room with all sorts of goodies and kick nacks for people to purchase in 
support of UPAWS.  

● The surgery center is up and running with 5 surgery days under our belts. To date, we 
have spayed/neutered 87 cats at the shelter. A huge thank you to our volunteer vets for 
giving up their days off to help shelter animals and a special thanks to Megan, Melissa, 
Paxton, Kya and Laurie for all their hard work. It really does take a village to get things 
accomplished. The last surgery day for 2025 will happen on Monday, December 8th. 

● Our IDEXX rep and field service technician were at the shelter on December 3rd to 
install our new bloodwork machines. The shelter is now fully equipped with a Procyte to 
run CBC’s and a Catalyst to run chemistry screenings for both dogs and cats. Megan 
and I are working on SOP’s to integrate running lab work on animals ages 7+ as they are 
considered geriatric. This way their new owners will have baseline bloodwork as their 
pets age. 

● Our main cat adoption room has been sponsored by the generosity of Georgia Curry 
along with one of the cat colony rooms being sponsored by the generosity of Roberta 
Henderson. Both rooms were sponsored in their memory by the people who loved them 
most. 

● Fundraising update from Nikki: 
○ Raise the Woof: Set for January 9th at the Up North Lodge - Looking for raffles 

prizes please.  
○ Giving Tuesday:  Funds raised were $3,363.93 with the goal of $5000.   
○ Strut Your Mutt date set for October 3rd, 2026.  Having it in October makes us 

eligible for Promo funds, possible 50% or more off park fee.   
○ Platinum Partners:  All have renewed except for MZD.  Have been soliciting new 

partners but nothing solid yet.  
● October report from Julie is attached 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sarah Yeager, LVT 
Shelter Manager  
 



Monthly Report Behavioral Animal Care Coordinator  
October 
 
Statistics 

No. of dogs adopted/gone into foster-to-adopt  
 

19 

No. of adopters contacted  
 

18 
 

No. of adopters giving feedback 11 
 

No. of adopters mentioning some issues and 
receiving post adoption training support 

0 
 
Ongoing advice for 2 dogs previously 
adopted  

No. of returned adoptions  
 

- under 3 months in home 
 
 
 

- Under a year in home 
 
 
 

 
 
0 
 
 
 
1  
(reactivity) 
 

 
 
Dogs in on a specific training/management plan: 2 

1 Ga ● anxiety 

2 Ro ● FAS          

3 Mo ● Reactivity 

 
 
 
 



Monthly Report Behavioral Animal Care Coordinator  
November 2025 
 
Statistics 

No. of dogs adopted/gone into foster-to-adopt  
 

19 

No. of adopters contacted  
 

19 
 

No. of adopters giving feedback 12 
(9 adopters were contacted the day of the 
report (12/05) because the adoptions were 
end of November) 

No. of adopters mentioning some issues and 
receiving post adoption training support 

3 
 
 

No. of returned adoptions  
 

- under 3 months in home 
 
 

- Under a year in home 
 

 
 
3 
(puppy too much work, potty issues, landlord) 
 
0 
 

 
Dogs in on a specific behavior modification/training/management plan: 13 

1 Ga ● Anxiety, lack of confidence 

2 Ro (Court) ● FAS,           

3 Ru (Court) ● FAS, some basic training      
  

4 Ra (Court) ● FAS, some basic training 

5 Re (Court) ● FAS, some basic training 

6 Dai ● Recall       

7 Din ● Fear, can’t be touched 

8 Ber ● Fear, can’t be touched 

9 Bo ● Fear/shut down  

10 Lil G ● Shut down, history of abuse 

11 Fra ● Shut down, fearful 

12 Sug ● Fearful from neglect 

13 Spi ● Fearful from neglect 



November 2025 (incomplete) DOGS CATS OTHER TOTAL
In Shelter 14 64 22 100
In Foster 37 7 in true foster 127 12 in true foster 0 164

TOTAL Beginning Count 51 191 22 264
INTAKE DOGS PUPS <5 mos. CATS KITS <5 mos. OTHER TOTAL YTD
Owner Surrender 6 4 11 23 3 47 472
Returned Adoption 0 0 1 0 0 1 14
Stray (from Police, Public and Shelter Pickup) 23 0 13 13 2 51 327
Born in Care 0 0 0 0 0 0 38
Transferred from Other Shelters 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
Special Hold/Service In 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
Seized/Custody (Cruelty & Neglect) 0 0 0 0 0 0 78
Total Intakes 29 4 25 36 5 99 1080

OUTCOMES
Adoptions (shelter, foster home or special event) 8 0 13 21 12 54 661

Total Adoptions YTD 145 13 282 109 112 661
Returned to Owner 6 0 1 0 0 7 144
Transferred to Rescue Groups/Shelters 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

Total Live Outcomes 14 0 14 21 12 61 813

EUTHANIZED/DEATHS/MISSING/STOLEN
Dangerous 1 0 0 0 0 1 4
Dying 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
          Animal's Name and Reason Molly-Dangerou

     TOTAL ANIMALS EUTHANIZED 1 0 0 0 0 1 10

Died at shelter/foster home - Unknown 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
Missing/Stolen/Escaped 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
          Animal's Name and Reason Pigpen-since 7/9/25Taiga-during 

surgery
Total Euth/Died/Other Outcomes 1 0 0 0 0 1 22

In Shelter 20 66 12 98
In Foster 48 7 in true foster 151 11 in true foster 3 202

TOTAL Ending Count (per formula) 69 217 15 301
TOTAL Ending Count (per report) 51 195 22 268

SAVE RATE (Intake- Euthanasia Outcome)/Intake 99.0% 99.1%
ASPCA Live Release Rate (Live Outcomes/ Intake) 61.6% 75.3%

OTHER INFO Dogs Cats
Avg. Length of Stay still trouble accessing report
Monthly Return Rate (returns/adoptions) 0% 3%



Board Development Committee – Board of Directors Report 

Date:  November 13, 2025 
Time: 3:00 PM 
Location: Peter White Public Library – Dandelion Room 
Attendees: Crystal Swanson, Reva Laituri, SteƯani Baker 

Summary:  

The committee focused on discussing the documents and SOPS to be set in place for the 
committee. Documents were presented and taken by members for revisions.   

 

Committee Documents  

 Committee continued working on documents including recruitment and onboarding 
new members. 

 First draft of both the Board Development manual with SOP’s and templates for 
documents, as well as a Board Welcome Packet to improve Board Member 
onboarding were presented and will be taken for review by committee members.  

 

Outreach and Recruitment 

No updates from October meeting 

 

Development and Impact 

No updates from October Meeting  

 

Next Meeting: December 8, 2025 – Peter White Library, Dandelion Room 



 
UPAWS Finance Committee Minutes 

 
Meeting Date: Monday, November 24th, 2025 at 5:00pm 

Meeting Location: Ore Dock Brewing Company 
 
Present: Chris Danik (Chair), Jill Compton, Leslie Hurst, Kathy Leone, Cole Zyburt 
 
New Business 

● Review September Financial Reports: No significant questions or discussion occurred. 
● Review October Financial Reports: No significant questions or discussion occurred. 
● Budget Amendment: Chris brought the revenue and expense information from a recently 

passed Board R&R for some purchases after receiving a recent bequest. The committee 
discussed whether the budget should be amended or not. The committee agreed to not 
recommend a budget amendment and that the R&R and board minutes was enough 
documentation for the overage that would appear in those expense accounts. 

● Project List: Chris brought a project list of items that have been assigned to the Finance 
Committee for completion and asked the committee if there are other items that we should add 
to the list. The following items remain outstanding: 

○ Finance Policy Updates (Specifically the Investment Policy) 
○ Financial Presentation for the Board 
○ Endowment Fund Solicitation Program in conjunction with Donor Development 
○ Capital Expenditure Strategy and Needs 
○ Analysis and Trends reporting 

● Gift Designations / Pink Lady: Chris brought a proposal to change the Pink Lady accounting 
to work more like Sally’s Fund, since it is another restricted fund with regular donors. 
Quickbooks shows a revenue balance of just over $41k in revenue since the beginning of time 
and almost $16k in expenses indicating a positive fund balance. Setting this as a separate 
restricted fund could be another way to target specific donors. Chris also proposed updating the 
online donation options to both simplify and clarify the available options. The committee will 
discuss further at the next meeting, 

 
Old Business 

● Analysis Discussion: Kathy updated the Financial Trends report with the numbers from the 
recent audit. Leslie brought forward a proposed change to the Board Policies regarding the 
annual meeting or annual report in the required timing. Leslie wanted to bring this to the Finance 
Committee to discuss the impact of financial reporting. There is a desire to present the 
financials more like the 990 categories, but that isn’t produced until the audit, which typically 
doesn't start until the summer. Kathy suggested adding more storytelling from the numbers. As 
homework, the committee will gather good examples of other annual reports and how financials 
are presented and will discuss them at the next meeting. 

● Finance Policy Updates & Investment Policy Statement: Tabled to next meeting. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:28pm 
 
Next Meeting: Monday, December 15th via Google Meet 



 DRAFT 
 POLICY & BYLAWS COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 November 3, 2025, 6:30pm, Border Grill Negaunee 

 Attendees: Leslie Hurst, Christine Larson, Linda Roncaglione, Brian Hummel, Lynn 
 Andronis 

 ●  October Minutes  - Approved. The draft was included  in the Oct Board Packet. 

 ●  Bylaws - Leslie distributed a printed copy of the latest draft prior to the meeting. 
 ●  Article 9 & 11 consolidation regarding annual meeting (into Article 9). B.4. 

 sub-items should be lower case letters vs. lower case roman numerals. Christine 
 & Leslie will verify formatting. Added “investments” to 4.c. 2nd bullet. Leslie will 
 share our discussion points and feedback received on financial information at the 
 next Finance Committee meeting. 

 ●  Adhoc committee is used throughout (vs special committee or temporary 
 committee). 

 ●  Consistent labelling of individuals (individual, applicant, candidate, nominee, 
 member) is complete. 

 ●  Lynn questioned the notification protocol for special meetings. After discussion, it 
 was agreed the protocol was outdated and the text too verbose. Sturgis was 
 consulted and revisions made. 

 ●  Lynn gave Leslie a copy of the recommended revisions to the UPAWS mission, 
 vision and core values from the Strategic Planning Committee. Leslie will put into 
 a google document on our drive for our review at the next meeting. 

 ●  Leslie will complete an R&R for an upcoming Board meeting and distribute it, 
 along with a final version of the draft (after any needed reformatting). It needs to 
 be distributed to the board by Wed, Dec 3rd 6pm to be addressed at the Dec 10th 
 board meeting, otherwise the Jan. meeting. 

 ●  Board Policies and Procedures Review Project: 
 ●  Prior to the meeting, Leslie distributed a printed copy of the draft of the 3/27/23 

 revisions to Section  16.0  Board of Directors: Officer  Description of Duties (this is 
 also the reformatted version) and the current document (March 2022). We did not 
 have time to address so it will be moved to the next meeting. 

 ●  Policies & Procedures Suggestions  - this is a consolidated  list of items to address. 

 ●  Next Meeting January 12, 2026 at 6:30pm, Negaunee Border Grill 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/10G3LLgCrvvuBP7YzPJ5p_Jt321Q4shuTykWaiNsY9eg/edit?usp=drive_link
https://docs.google.com/document/d/17AdMyT26eWbnWG9UaO10V0a6wQ183Bw9M5ikW39Fs5g/edit?usp=drive_link


Donor Development Committee – Board Report 

Date: November 18, 2025 
Time: 12:30 PM 
Location: Google Meets  Peter White Public Library – Dandelion Room  
Participants: Reva Laituri, Lysa Oravetz, Nikki Dewald, SteƯani Baker 

 

Administrative Items 

-Committee access to Neon will be given – SteƯ will confirm with Chris best route.  

-Roles and areas of interest were discussed and noted so moving forward we’re assigning 
tasks to committee members that are relevant to experience and interest. 

-It was decided we will require members of Donor Development to sign a confidentiality 
agreement considering we are working directly with supporters as well as have access to 
our database. 

Donor & Community Appreciation 

Discussion was had on potential supporters as well as the continued discussion on our 
appreciation and thank you process for our supporters. 

2026 Priorities 

We will create a Donor Development handbook including SOPs and templates, as well as a 
donor lifecycle SOP.  

Nikki and SteƯ will work on the first draft of revamping our thank you process to present to 
the committee.  

First draft of 2026 goals that are measurable will be brought to December meeting. 

 

Next Meeting: December 16, 2025 

 

 


